
 
 

REGIONAL COUNCIL 9 
JUNE 19, 2020 

ANNUAL MEETING 
9:30 AM to 11:30 AM 
Zoom Link or Call-In 

Due to the COVID crisis this meeting was held via electronic means details included with this agenda. 
*Public Comments are welcome. To submit a public comment form, enclosed, complete the attached form and 

email to sholland@centralvirginia.org  
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Welcome Jim Cheng, Chair 
 

2. Public Comment Jim Cheng 
 

3. Roll Call Shannon Holland, Director 
 

4. Approve Meeting Minutes Jim Cheng 
 

5. Approve Financials Andy Wade, Treasurer 
 

6. Council Calendar Jim Cheng 
 

7. Vote to Accept Public Sector Appointments Jim Cheng 
 

8. Vote on Private Sector Slate  Jim Cheng 
Members, Officers & Executive Committee 
 

9. Strike Force Update Ed Scott 
 

10. Vote on Strike Force Status Jim Cheng 
 

11. Letter of Support for Competitive Project:  Shannon Blevins,  
Retooling Virginia Manufacturers for Strategic Industries UVA Wise, Region 1; 

Bill Donohue, GENEDGE 
 

12. Vote on Letter of Support Jim Cheng 
 

13. Chair Update Jim Cheng 
 

14. Director Update  Shannon Holland 
 

15. Other Business Jim Cheng 
 

16. Adjourn Jim Cheng   
  

mailto:sholland@centralvirginia.org


Shannon Holland is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: Region 9 Council Annual Meeting 
Time: Jun 19, 2020 09:30 AM – 11:30 AM 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/97924617452?pwd=RDBYSHg2ZFZQdXZnYk14bzN5N3k3dz09 
 
Meeting ID: 979 2461 7452 
Password: 410304 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,97924617452#,,1#,410304# US (Chicago) 
+19292056099,,97924617452#,,1#,410304# US (New York) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 979 2461 7452 
Password: 410304 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/adCDDgypK 



Region 9 Council Meeting
PUBLIC COMMENT FORM 

Provide your public comments below. These comments will be read during the June 19 Region 9 
Council Annual Meeting.  Please send as an email attachment to sholland@centralvirgina.org with the 

subject line “GO Virginia Comments April 2020.” Submissions will be accepted until June 19 at 7 am.

Name:  

Organization: 

Email: 

Comments in the area below: 

mailto:andrea.devening@dhcd.virginia.gov


 
 

REGIONAL COUNCIL 9 
APRIL 30, 2020 

9:30 AM to 11:30 AM 
Due to the COVID-19 State of Emergency this meeting was held via Zoom link and conference line. Details 

enclosed. 
 

MINUTES 
 

Attending Council Members: Jim Cheng, Cav Angels (Chair); Ed Scott, EcoSeptix Alliance (Vice Chair); Andy Wade, 
Louisa County (Treasurer); Brian Cole, LexisNexis; Chip Boyles, Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission; 
Christian Goodwin, Louisa County; David Pettit, Flora Pettit; Ed Dalrymple, Cedar Mountain Stone; Hon. Jim 
Crozier, Orange County; Felix Sarfo-Kantanka, Dominion Energy; Jan Gullickson, Germanna Community College; 
Kurt Krueger, McGuireWoods; Liz Walters, Bingham & Taylor; Mansour Azimipour, A & K Development; Miles 
Friedman, Fauquier County; Pace Lochte, University of Virginia Economic Development; Patrick Mauney, 
Rappahannock-Rapidan Regional Commission; Paul McCulla, Fauquier County; Ray Knott, Union Bank & Trust; 
Shelby Bruguiere, Dickie Brothers Orchard; Tom Click, Patriot Aluminum 
Special Guest: Kim Blosser, Lord Fairfax Community College as Special Guest of the Council; 
Absent Council Members: Frank Friedman, Piedmont Virginia Community College; Hon. Tony O’Brien, Fluvanna 
County 
Staff: Helen Cauthen, Kristy Dancy, Shannon Holland 
Guests: Candace Spence, Central Virginia Partnership; Catherine Renault, Innovation Policyworks; Erik Pages, 
Entreworks; Phil Sheridan, Culpeper County; Greg Rosko, PVCC; Rachel Hobbs, UVA Economic Development; 
Roger Johnson, Albemarle County; Rose Deal, Culpeper; Tracey Gardner, Madison County; Valeria Palamountain, 
PVCC 

 
Welcome 
Jim Cheng called the meeting to order at 9:32 am.  

• COVID 19 State of Emergency Statement:  
Jim Cheng stated that this meeting is being held electronically via Zoom, instead of in person due to the 
State of Emergency declared by the Governor and that agenda items and discussions would be limited 
to those directly related to addressing urgent matters that, if delayed, could result in irrevocable public 
harm from GO Virginia not advancing pipeline projects to respond to the economic crisis. 

• Roll Call 
Jim Cheng asked Shannon Holland to perform a roll call and confirm that a quorum was present. A 
quorum was present.  

 
Public Comment 
Jim Cheng noted that public comment forms had been included in the packet and posted with meeting notices to be 
submitted to staff by 7 am. Shannon Holland stated that no public comment forms had been submitted. 

 
Meeting Minute January 30, 2020 
Jim Cheng stated that he Meeting Minutes provided were for informational purposes only and that approval will be 
deferred.  

 
Financials through February 29, 2020 
Jim Cheng stated that he Financial Report provided were for informational purposes only and that approval will be 
deferred. 
 
 
Appoint Nominating Committee  



 

Jim Cheng stated that the Council Bylaws require the appointment of a Nominating Committee at the meeting 
immediately prior to the Annual Meeting and in the new Nominating Committee will meet between the May 15 and 
mid-June to select a Slate from the Nominations received by May 15. Also, he stated that Nominating forms are available 
on the Council website. Jim Cheng announced the new committee would include Jan Gullickson, Tom Click, Brian Cole, 
Patrick Mauney, and Jim Cheng and that terms would begin after the meeting.  

 
Approve FY2021 Capacity Building Budget 
Jim Cheng stated that the FY21 Capacity Building must be approved and submitted to DHCD by May 29 ahead of a 
June Board Meeting review.  Jim Cheng added that the Executive Committee reviewed at its April 23 rd meeting 
and recommends it to the Council for approval.  
David Pettit made a motion to approve the budget as presented. Ray Knott seconded the motion. The motion 
carried. 
 
Present Rural E-ship Action Plan, Camoin 310 
Jim Cheng introduced Erik Pages, Entreworks, and Catherine Renault, Innovation Policyworks, to present the final Rural 
Entrepreneurship Action Plan Report. The slide show as included in the meeting materials. 
Several Council Members commented on the report including: 

• The E squared youth e-ship program in Culpeper has been successful because the hundreds of businesses and 
volunteers committed to supporting it. 

• The availability of free secondary education curricula for youth e-ship and the existence of a resource called 
the Consortium for E-Ship Education including wasy to align with SOLs.  

• The PATH Foundation is funding Youth E-ship Councils in high schools throughout Fauquier County that will 
support continued growth of youth e-ship. 

• The importance of having local / county based locations for convening entrepreneurs 
• Appreciation that this report was customized and reflective of Region 9. 

 
Vote to Accept Rural E-ship Report 
Ed Scott made a motion to accept the final report as presented. Shelby Bruguiere seconded the motion. The motion 
carried.  

 
Chair Update  

• Review GO Virginia Economic Resilience and Recovery Grants  
• Review Per Capita Grants – Temporary Match Easing  

Jim Cheng asked Shannon Holland to lead the presentation included in the meeting packet regarding the new GO 
Virginia Economic Resiliency and Recovery (ERR) Grant Program and the temporarily relaxed Per Capita grant 
match requirements.  

• Appoint Task Force  
Jim Cheng stated that the Executive Committee met on April 23 and had two recommendations for responding to 
the COVID crisis and the opportunity offered by the new ERR grant program. The Executive Committee 
recommends that Strike Force be named to lead the development of grants and even to possibly review and 
approve those grants. Jim Cheng stated that he, Ed Dalrymple, Ray Knott, Pace Lochte, Tom Click, and Ed Scott were 
willing to serve on such a Strike Force if the Council would vote to create it.   
David Pettit made a motion to create the strike force. Mansour Azimipour seconded the motion.  
 
Discussion ensued on whether this strike force could be assigned authority to review ERR grants less than $100,000 and 
ECB grants less than $100,000 in order to be responsive to the crisis. David Pettit shared that the Bylaws precluded the 
Executive Committee from approving grants and that the Bylaws could not be changed without public notice. However, 
when those Bylaws were written the circumstances were far more extreme than anyone could have projected. Other 
options could include the Chair calling Special Council Meetings to review and approve projects. Additional discussion 
ensued around how long such a Strike Force should exist and be empowered to approve projects. Based on the 
discussion David Pettit asked Mansour Azimipour if he could revise the motion. Mansour Azimipour consented.  
 
David Pettit revised the motion to create a strike force to solicit, identify and approve projects for ERR of less than 



 

100k and ECB less than 100k pursuant to newly simplified DHCD grant review procedures and that authority should 
expire when such procedures are not in effect and the existence and authority of the Strike Force should be reviewed 
at the next Council Meeting. Jim Crozier seconded the motion. The motion carried. 
 
Jim Cheng stated that at the April 23rd Executive Committee priorities for ERR grants were suggested including: 

• Drive e-commerce, support ability to work remotely, and grow digital marketing capacity  
• Drive exponential growth in testing, PPE availability, sanitizing, etc., that will help industry get back to work 

safely/quickly. 
• Explore opportunities to support locally traded sectors as suggested by DHCD 

Liz Walters recommended an additional priority: 
• Helping connect the large number of displaced workers with available positions and/or help connect to 

retraining opportunities in in-demand career fields 
 

Jim Cheng said that staff was seeking approval from the Council for suggestions to accelerate review and approval of ERR 
Fast Track (<100k) and ECB grants (<100k) for which they were asking approval. The suggestions were:    

1. Staff can simplify application 
2. Accept these applications on a rolling basis instead of previously stated deadlines 
3. Accelerate Council review to 1 to 5 business days  

 
Ed Dalrymple made a motion to approve the staff recommendations as submitted. Mansour Azimipour seconded the 
motion. The motion carried. 

 
Crafting Higher Paying Jobs Project Update   
Jim Cheng introduced Dean Valerie Palamountain to present the “Crafting” project updated requested by Council 
at the January meeting. The Crafting project has met or exceeded metrics but due to the extenuating 
circumstances of COVID-19 has determined that establishing on-site training facilities is no longer feasible. Dean 
Palamountain stated that the project expects to complete reporting and remittances by June 30, the contract end 
date, however, there will be approximately $180,000 to $190,000 of funds that will not have been spent. 
Shannon Holland explained that DHCD has advised in the past that those funds would go back in the Region 9 Per 
Capita funds for future grants.   

 
Other Business- Limited to Emergency Issues 
Jim Cheng asked Shannon to discuss a time sensitive issue that had just come up on the GWC PTEC project. 
Shannon Holland shared that due to COVID related issues the GWC PTEC project is expected to request a contract 
extension from 4/23/2020 to 12/31/2020 in order to reallocate remaining un spent budget - around 80k for 
renovation of welding school to more appropriately leverage new partnership will Germanna in taking over the 
welding school and to ensure contract project metrics are met, i.e. students trained and certified.  
 
Mansour Azimipour made a motion to approve the extension as presented. Paul McCulla seconded the motion. 
The motion carried.  
 
Upcoming Date 

• Region 9 Council Meeting,  June 19, Annual Meeting 
• Region 9 Application Deadlines - May 26 / September 8 
• GO Virginia Board Meeting, Richmond, VA – June 23 

 
Adjourn 
Felix Sarfo-Kantanka made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 11:13 am. Tom Click seconded the motion. The 
motion carried.  
 

  



 

Region 9 Council Meeting via ZOOM or Call-in: Information below 
 
Topic: Region 9 Council Meeting 
Time: Apr 30, 2020 09:30 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/93820894179?pwd=Ryt0UFhkSTd0Uk4rTk9RUmRaY0hGQT09 
 
Meeting ID: 938 2089 4179 
Password: 123099 
One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,93820894179#,,#,123099# US (New York) 
+13126266799,,93820894179#,,#,123099# US (Chicago) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US 
Meeting ID: 938 2089 4179 
Password: 123099 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abTCWqlmQN 

 

https://zoom.us/j/93820894179?pwd=Ryt0UFhkSTd0Uk4rTk9RUmRaY0hGQT09
https://zoom.us/u/abTCWqlmQN


 

1 
 

 
 
 
 

REGIONAL COUNCIL 9 
JANUARY 30, 2020 

9:30 AM to 11:30 AM 
Daniel Technology Center, Germanna Community College 

18121 Technology Drive, Culpeper, VA  
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Attending Council Members:  Jim Cheng, Cav Angels (Chair); Ed Scott, EcoSeptix Alliance (Vice Chair); Andy 
Wade, Louisa County (Treasurer); Brian Cole, LexisNexis;  Chip Boyles, Thomas Jefferson Planning District 
Commission;  Christian Goodwin, Louisa County; Ed Dalrymple, Cedar Mountain Stone;  Frank Friedman, 
Piedmont Virginia Community College;  Hon. Jim Crozier, Orange County;  Jan Gullickson, Germanna 
Community College; Kurt Krueger, McGuireWoods; Liz Walters, Bingham & Taylor; Mansour Azimipour, A & K 
Development; Miles Friedman, Fauquier County;  Pace Lochte, University of Virginia Economic Development;  
Patrick Mauney, Rappahannock-Rapidan Regional Commission;  Paul McCulla, Fauquier County; Ray Knott, 
Union Bank & Trust;  Hon. Tony O’Brien, Fluvanna County 
 
Absent Council Members: David Pettit, Flora Pettit;  Felix Sarfo-Kantanka, Dominion Energy;  Shelby Bruguiere, 
Dickie Brothers Orchard; Tom Click, Patriot Aluminum; Kim Blosser, Lord Fairfax Community College as Special 
Guest of the Council; 
 
Guests: Laura Loveday, Culpeper County; Phil Sheridan, Culpeper County; Greg Rosko, PVCC 
 
Staff:  Shannon Holland, Helen Cauthen; Rahul Maitra 
 
1. Welcome 

Jim Cheng, Chair, opened the meeting at 9:33 AM.  
 

2. Public Comment 
Jim Cheng asked if there were public comments. No public comments were offered. 
 

3. Meeting Minutes  
Ed Scott made a motion to approve the October 10, 2019 Minutes as presented. Jim Crozier seconded 
the motion. The motion carried. 
 

4. Financial Report 
Jim Cheng asked Andy Wade, Treasurer to present the Financials. Andy Wade asked Rahul Maitra, the 
new Finance Director at the Central Virginia Partnership, to present the financials.  
 
Rahul referred to the Statement of Financial Position in the packet. He noted that as of November,   
Region 9 had $27,674.48 in checking. He added that he had reviewed the current balance and with 
checks processed that number is currently around $75. He noted that in this statement GO Virginia owes 
the Partnership a little over $155,000. He explained that this balance is the result of pending remittances 



 

2 
 

from DHCD that were thought to have been appropriately submitted. However, it turned out some of the 
attachments were too large and did not go through. Now that is corrected, about $75,000 from those 
remittances will be released. He plans on getting remittances caught up by the next Council meeting.  
 
He then referred to the Project Budgets on page 27 in the packet. He noted that the Adult Beverage 
project had spent about 8% of its budget and that Greg Rosko would be updating the Council in his 
presentation later in the meeting. He added that CvilleBioHub would be closing out their ECB project 
soon and that the Cybersecurity had spent 25% of their budget. Also, he added that the Site Readiness 
project was now ready for close out. He noted that the Regional Business Park project would be receiving 
a $98,000 reimbursement soon that was not reflected in the November statement. Similarly, he added 
that the Young Entrepreneurs project had a check in process for about $3,000 in expenditures.  
 
Ray Knott made a motion to approve the Financials as presented. Christian Goodwin seconded the 
motion. The motion carried. 
 

5. Executive Committee Meeting Update 
Jim Cheng gave an update from the Executive Committee meeting held on December 12, 2019. He noted 
that the main topics discussed were related to budgets and project updates. The Executive Committee 
approved the budget revision required to close out the FY2019 Capacity Building funds so that the 
Council can access FY2020 Capacity Building dollars from DHCD. The committee also discussed project 
activities and milestones for the GWC PTEC and the Crafting Higher Paying jobs projects. Shannon wanted 
input on issues each project is addressing as the projects near contract end dates. The welding school at 
GWC PTEC was facing a change in leadership and the applicant was in the process of developing an MOU 
with Germanna Community College. There was a question of an incomplete inventory of equipment. The 
Executive Committee asked Shannon to set up a meeting with the applicant. The Crafting project was 
facing a challenge in accomplishing milestones and expending funds although the metrics reported were 
very good. HE noted that project would be doing a presentation at this meeting and a discussion would 
follow. 
   

6. Rural E-ship Planning Grant Update 
Jim Cheng shared that Erik Pages was leading the Camoin 310 team working with the volunteers of the 
Rural E-ship Task Force to complete the Rural E-ship planning grant action plan. All regional economic 
development offices and the Central Virginia Partnership have been involved. So far A Rural E-Ship Asset 
Inventory has been created, eight case studies have been completed, and nine stakeholder sessions have 
been hosted. Jim Cheng asked for any feedback on the very preliminary recommendations included in the 
packet as well as feedback from Council Members who attended. The need to address broadband gaps 
and connectivity of existing or planned co-working type spaces, were both mentioned as important for 
the report. The session feedback was positive and it was noted that each session was distinctly different 
depending on the types of businesses represented and the location.   
 
Jim Cheng asked Pace Lochte if she had an update on the “Venture Hub”, now “Venture Central” project. 
Pace Lochte indicated that her team, along with economic developers from Charlottesville and Albemarle 
had been socializing the report and were looking for resources to advance the opportunity. 
 

7. Project Update: Crafting Higher Paying Jobs and Adult Beverage Exports by Greg Rosko, Program 
Manager, Viticulture & Enology, PVCC 
Jim Cheng introduced Greg Rosko, PVCC to present an update on the Crafting project. Greg Rosko 



 

3 
 

presented a PowerPoint (attached). A question and answer session followed the presentation.  
    

8. Chair Update 
Referring to page 37 in the packet, Jim Cheng reminded the members that DHCD was holding stakeholder 
workgroup sessions to discuss key Board policy areas. He encouraged Council Members to volunteer to 
attend, if possible. Jim Cheng asked Liz Walters, who attended the Friday, January 24 Talent Development 
session to provide an update. Liz Walters noted that 71% of funded GO Virginia projects statewide were 
in the area of Talent Development. She said she thought the meeting was good and that there was good 
representation from the regions. She shared that there was a lot of discussion around a statewide 
strategy for talent development and possible clarification around what GO Virginia might support in 
talent recruitment.  
 
Jim Cheng shared that the Biotech Innovation Cluster Growth project contract was in review for 
signatures right now. He added that the Partnership would be reviewing for their signature at their late 
February Board meeting. Also, Jim Cheng noted that there were two contract related issues that would 
require a vote. First, DHCD has identified some wording in their contract template that restricts 
reimbursement only to those incurred and paid for before contract end dates. Some projects may need 
that wording amended and DHCD is developing the wording now.  
 
Jan Gullickson made a motion to allow the Chair and legal counsel to review the wording and approve 
for project contracts, as needed. Tony O’Brien seconded the motion. The motion carried. 
 
Secondly, Jim Cheng said, as some projects near contract end dates, they may require contract extensions 
for various reasons. DHCD seems to be fine with granting 1-3 month extensions but are not committing to 
anything longer. A discussion ensued that because the Council meets only four times a year, this could be 
important to keep some projects on track.  
 
Miles Friedman made a motion to allow the Chair and legal counsel to review and approve for 
signature project contract extensions, if justified, and report them at next Council meeting. Tony 
O’Brien seconded the motion. The motion carried. 
 
Jim Cheng asked Ed Scott to provide a Legislative session update. Ed Scott noted that the Council had 
been getting General Assembly email updates from Chris Lloyd. He updated the Council that the 
legislation allowing tobacco funds to be used as GO Virginia matching funds was approved in the Finance 
Committee and the legislation that required some GO Virginia funds to be directed in Opportunity Zones 
was defeated in committee. Frank Friedman added that the Governor has introduced legislation that if 
approved would provide free education or training in specific in-demand fields. The program, called G3 
which stands for Get a Skill, Get a Job, Give Back, would help attract students into career and technical 
education.  
 
Jan Gullickson made a motion that the Region 9 Council should vote to support the G3 Legislation. Liz 
Walters seconded the motion. The motion carried with one vote against.  
 
Jim Cheng referred to the Dashboard in the packet and summarized that there is $460,000 in Per Capital 
grant funding still available for Region 9 and that, as long as there are no changes in the General 
Assembly, Region 9 should receive another 1 million for project funding on July 1. He added that project 
funds leftover after project close outs should also roll back into the Per Capita pot of money.  



 

4 
 

 
Jim Cheng also reminded the Council that the nomination cycle would be starting soon. 
 

9. Director Update 
Shannon Holland said she wanted Council feedback on activities related to two projects. First, the GWC 
PTEC project encountered a leadership change at the welding school and that Germanna Community 
College was in discussion with Culpeper County to sign an MOU to take over the program. During the 
leadership transition there was an equipment inventory question that she has been working with 
Culpeper County to address. As the inventory issue and the leadership issues are addressed, she will pay 
remittances so that the project can be best positioned for success when Germanna takes over. In regards 
to the Crafting project, Shannon Holland noted that though the metrics reporting on this project were on 
track and showing success, she was concerned that the project would not meet all milestones by contract 
end date and thus would not be able to spend their awarded budget before contract expiration. A 
discussion ensued as to how the Crafting project might be able to resolve the issues related to identifying 
sites so that equipment funds could be expended appropriately. It was agreed that because the contract 
expired on June 30, Frank Friedman would present different solutions or options at the next Council 
meeting for further discussion.  
 
Shannon Holland added that there were six potential projects in development, including:  

• Region wide talent development project 
• Broadband assessment project  
• Follow-on grant for the Young Entrepreneurs ECB grant 
• Possible inter-regional project to develop wet lab space 
• Regional Entrepreneurship Investment (REI) opportunity  
• Project opportunities identified in the upcoming Rural E-ship Report 

 
Shannon Holland also updated the Council on activities related to a Region 4 Inter-Regional grant that 
was active. Originally, the grant included a significant ask on behalf of a Region 9 stakeholder and a 
statewide accelerator network. The grant was not submitted through the Region 9 Council process. 
Shannon Holland said that Region 4 was moving forward with this grant in a different format and that 
there were lessons learned. She added that it would be important for the Council to know that 1) when 
an inter-regional project develops from another region, the Council would have to review from the lead 
region’s application format; and 2) that there could be Region 9 stakeholders included in inter-regional 
projects that would not necessarily require an approval from the Council.  Going forward, Regional staff 
members are discussing ways to improve and optimize success of the inter-regional grant proposal 
process.   
 
Tony O’Brien asked how the Council would be involved with the upcoming Tom Tom Festival. Shannon 
Holland said she is exploring the opportunity of partnering with DHCD again this year, however, at a 
minimum expects to support ticket availability for regional stakeholders. 
 
Shannon Holland also shared that now Virginia Department of Economic Development (VEDP) has 
completed their statewide site readiness assessment, they are working with GO Virginia support 
organizations to roll out the information. Shannon Holland is working with the Central Virginia 
Partnership to do this. The plan currently is to do a meeting in each of the regional planning districts on 
March 20 and March 27, depending on availability of facilities.   
 



 

5 
 

10. Other Business 
Miles Friedman shared that Fauquier County has joined the Norther Virginia Economic Development 
Alliance (NOVA EDA). The organization was developed from the momentum created from collaborative 
efforts to attract Amazon’s HQ2 project.  
 

11. Upcoming Dates 
Jim Cheng reminded the Council of these upcoming dates:  

•Region 9 Council Meeting, UVA Research Park, Charlottesville - April 30 
•Region 9 Application Deadlines - March 3 / May 26 / September 8 
•GO Virginia Board Meeting, Richmond, VA - March 17. 

 
12. Adjourn 

Jim Cheng adjourned the meeting at 11:33 a.m.  





















































Appendix 3 - Supplementary Demand Information – Re-Tooling Virginia Manufacturers for Strategic Industries 

 pg. 1 

Industrial Demand Signals – Re-shoring – other than PPE 

The United States is quickly realizing that security requires developing and managing supply chains 

which reduce risk of business interruption.  The Department of Defense has led Federal advocacy to 

expand domestic supply.  GENEDGE operates a current project – Rural DoD Supply Chain Development, 

which is serving the following companies that are either entering the DoD space or are expanding 

services. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated problems for a broad set of manufacturing businesses.  In 

latter March 2020, Thomas.Net, the world’s leading industrial sourcing and marketing platform surveyed 

executives and decision makers from 1073 small and mid-sized companies regarding their interest / 

need in re-shoring supply.  Following are excerpts from that study, titled Corona Virus Impacts on North 

American Manufacturing. 

● 1 in 2 U.S. Manufacturers Now Seeking Domestic Sources of Supply: We saw a reduced desire

in sourcing internationally (from 43% to 34%), and an increased number of respondents (47% from 43%)

are now looking to source in North America. 

● Creative Coping Strategies Starting to Emerge: From increasing capacity to support customers

impacted by degraded supply chains to using live feed cameras to deliver machinery acceptance tests,

we see American ingenuity at its best. 

Figure 1 - Sectors Surveyed 

Other sectors self-identified as 

biotechnology, consulting, 

consumer packaged goods, 

environmental, packaging, water 

filtration, and systems. 



Supplementary Demand Information – Re-Tooling Virginia Manufacturers for Strategic Industries 

 

 pg. 2     

The sectors are a very representative sample of demand sources for manufactured goods.  The pain 

encountered can be characterized as follows. 

 
Figure 2 - Supply Chain Disruptions 

The types of manufactured goods and raw materials causing disruptions is as follows: 

 

 

Figure 3 – Supply Chain Re-shoring Opportunities 



Supplementary Demand Information – Re-Tooling Virginia Manufacturers for Strategic Industries 

 

 pg. 3     

The areas of supply chain gaps, except for PPE are representative of a very significant portion of 

manufacturing establishments in Virginia. 

For technology businesses, sourcing from China is a large vulnerability which is portrayed in the 

following graphic. 

 

Figure 4 - Tech business Reliance on China for Product Development 

 

The rate of re-shoring activity is growing significantly.  Nearly 1 out of 2 companies is now re-shoring as 

a risk reduction strategy.  Sadly, the other leading strategy is turning down orders. 

 

 

Figure 5 - Re-shoring Activities, Now 



Supplementary Demand Information – Re-Tooling Virginia Manufacturers for Strategic Industries 

 

 pg. 4     

The likelihood of re-shoring continues to grow 

 

Figure 6 - Likelihood of Reshoring due to Covid-19 

The concentration of companies in manufacturing, engineering and technology businesses in Virginia is 

as follows: 

 



Supplementary Demand Information – Re-Tooling Virginia Manufacturers for Strategic Industries 

 

 pg. 5     

In conclusion, there is a 50% probability of opportunities to re-shore being considered seriously across 

the major industrial sectors in the United States.  Virginia companies that can create a strong value 

proposition, goods of high quality that are competitively priced, with strong response and turn around 

capabilities can win new business for the long term.  Projected demand sectors are portrayed in Figure 

1, and supply sectors are provided in Figure 2.   

This projection is based on very limited secondary sources of market information.  GENEDGE proposes 

to address this comprehensively in the first phase of the proposed project, while we address the 

medium and long term critical needs for alternate sources of PPE production in Virginia. 

Thomas Survey Details: 

Respondent’s Firmographics: 

● Revenue: Business revenues span from less than $4.9 million to over $500 million 

● Employees: Company size spans from less than 100 to over 1,500 employees 

● Business Descriptor: 74% of the respondents identify as OEMs and custom manufacturers 

● Headquarters Location: Identified by state/province 

 

Questions?  Contact 

 

Dean Young, Vice President, Industrial Development dyoung@genedge.org  804-323-6000 

 

Bill Donohue, President             bdonohue@genedge.org 276-732-5755 

 

mailto:dyoung@genedge.org
mailto:bdonohue@genedge.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FY 2020 

YEAR END REPORT ON GROWTH PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 

Region 9 Council Annual Meeting 

June 19, 2020 

Contents: 

• Funding Dashboard 
• Project List 
• Narrative 



 
 

 

FUNDING DASHBOARD –REGION 9 

PER CAPITA FUNDING 

* Up to 250k total may be awarded each year from Per Capita Allocations 
** Biotech Innovation Cluster for $548,000/CV Workforce Recovery Initiative for $99,500 (ECB) 
*** $150,500 remaining in FY20 for ECB 
 

ECONOMIC RESILIENCY AND RECOVERY (ERR) FUNDING 

 
* Up to $300,000 total may be awarded for FAST ACCESS <100k proposals  
** FAST ACCESS: Project Rebound, $80,000; Project Reconnect, $99,500; Crafting a New Normal $44,000  
*** $76,500 remaining available for FAST ACCESS 

FY 
Per Capita/ECB 
Allocation* 

Added from  
Capacity 
Building  

 
Rollover from 

prior year Total Available for Projects YTD Total  Awarded 

Funds Remaining  
(if not used carried 
forward at FY end)  

FY2018  546,301  250,000   796,301  727,447  68,854  

FY2019 1,000,000 0 68,854 1,168,204 1,159,550 8,654 

FY2020 1,000,000 0 8,654 1,008,654 647,500** 361,154*** 

FY 
ERR 
Allocation* 

Rollover from 
prior year Total Available for Projects YTD Total  Awarded** Funds Remaining*** 

FY2020 1,000,000, 0 1,000,000  223,500 776,500 



 

PROJECT LIST -  REGION 9 

Project Award   Description 
Biotech Innovation Cluster Growth  
CvilleBioHub with the City of Charlottesville, Albemarle 
County, UVA, and Quantitative Foundation 548,000   

Growing Existing Business project targeting 
Biotech 

Catalyst Accelerator Project 
City of Charlottesville, Albemarle County, UVA Economic 
Development, UVA Darden School of Business Batten Institute 
for Entrepreneurship and Innovation 

475,200   
Entrepreneurship & Innovation project 
targeting traded sector 

Crafting a New Normal (ERR FA) 
PD-10 with the Counties of Nelson and Madison 44,000   

Support regional Craft Industry sector of 
Food & Bev. Mfg. to address COVID 19 
challenges  

Crafting Higher Paying Jobs and Adult 
Beverage Exports 
PVCC with Germanna CC and the Counties of Madison and 
Nelson 

249,472   
Talent Development project targeting Food 
& Beverage Manufacturing 

CV Cybersecurity Partnership (ECB) 
PVCC with Germanna CC and LFCC 100,000   Talent Development project targeting 

IT/Communications + 
CV Site Readiness (ECB) 
Central Virginia Partnership with the Counties of Albemarle, 
Culpeper, Fluvanna, Greene, Louisa, Madison, Nelson, and 
Orange 

58,675   
Site Development project targeting Light 
Manufacturing+ 

CV Workforce Recovery Initiative (ECB) 
Central Virginia Partnership with the Counties of Albemarle, 
Culpeper, Fluvanna, Greene, Louisa, Madison, Nelson, and 
Orange 

99,500   
Talent Development project targeting IT, 
Financial & Business Services, Light Mfg., 
and Food & Beverage Mfg.  

CvilleBioHub (ECB) 
CvilleBioHub with City of Charlottesville, Albemarle County 
and UVA 83,540   

Grow Existing Businesses project targeting 
Biotech 

George Washington Carver Piedmont 
Technical Education Center (GWC PTEC) 
Culpeper County with Counties of Fauquier, Madison,  
Orange, and Rappahannock; and Germanna CC 

244,300   
Talent Development project targeting Light 
Manufacturing 

Project Rebound (ERR FA) 
Charlottesville Regional Chamber with the Albemarle, County, 
the City of Charlottesville, and UVA 80,000   

To synthesize and publish strategies for 
regional business recovery from COVID 
economic crisis 

Project Reconnect (ERR FA) 
Virginia Career Works -  Piedmont Region  with Counties of 
Albemarle, Culpeper, Fauquier, Fluvanna, Greene, Louisa, 
Madison, Nelson, Orange, Rappahannock, and the City of 
Charlottesville 

99,500   

Talent Development connecting COVID 19 
displaced workers with hiring  target sector 
companies 

Regional Business Park 
Louisa County with Central Virginia Partnership 600,850   Sites targeting all target industries 

Young Entrepreneurs Program (ECB) 
Fauquier County with Counties of Orange, Culpeper and 
Louisa 83,500   

Entrepreneurship & Innovation project 
targeting Entrepreneurship Ecosystem 



PROJECT AWARDS & LEVERAGE – REGION 9 

 

 

 

 

Region 9 Awarded , 
$2,766,537 

Locality Match, 
$3,735,450 

Other Match, 
$1,320,330 

Addt'l Leverage , 
$1,835,764 

GO Virginia Region 9 - Project Awards and Leverage 

Region 9 Awarded Locality Match Other Match Addt'l Leverage

Project
 Region 9 
Awarded  

 Locality 
Match  Other Match 

 Addt'l 
Leverage  

GWC PTEC 244,300$        431,625         1,296,811      
Crafting Higher Paying Jobs 249,472$        50,000           209,050        
CV CyberSecurity 100,000$        -                  136,400        133,553         
CV Site Readiness 58,675$           58,675           -                 
Cvil leBioHub 83,540$           10,000           83,540          9,000              
Catalyst 475,200$        110,000         366,000        250,000         
Regional Business Park 600,850$        2,802,150      
Young Entrepreneurs 83,500$           77,500           6,000             4,000              
Biotech Innovation Cluster 548,000$        130,000         422,840        51,900            
Rebound 80,000$           7,500              32,500          90,500            
Reconnect 99,500$           25,000           25,000          
CV Workforce 99,500$           22,500           27,500          
Crafting New Normal 44,000$           10,500           11,500          
Totals 2,766,537$     3,735,450$   1,320,330$  1,835,764$    



 
 
 

PLANNING GRANTS 

During the past three years, the Region 9 Council has identified priorities to explore through Planning 
Projects funded through the Region Capacity Building budget.  

Planning Report 
Council 

Approved 
 

Cost Description 

“Venture Hub” October 
2019 $49,893 

To explore the concept of an iconic center for 
entrepreneurship in partnership with the City of 
Charlottesville, Albemarle County and UVA 
Economic Development. 

Rural E-ship Action 
Plan 

April 
2020 $48,133 

To evaluate the region’s rural entrepreneurship 
opportunities in collaboration with the Central 
Virginia Partnership and Economic Development 
Leaders in the Counties of Culpeper, Fauquier, 
Fluvanna, Greene, Louisa, Madison, Nelson, 
Orange, Rappahannock 
 

TARGET FRAMEWORKS AND INDUSTRIES 

ENGAGEMENT – BUSINESS, EDUCATION AND LOCALITIES 

Incentivizing regional collaboration between business, education and localities is one of the goals of GO 
Virginia. Region 9 continues to make significant strides toward achieving this goal.  

Business: The Council continues to ensure business is helping to lead the initiatives funded. For 
example, the Biotech Innovation Cluster Growth project was awarded to a business lead organization, 
CvilleBioHub. 

Education: There are four institutions of higher education in Region 9. (UVA, PVCC, GCC, LFCC) Each of 
these institutions has been engaged in one or more of the approved projects over the past three years. 
Leaders from the four institutions serve the region as Council Members or as a Special Guest of the 
Council.   

Localities: To date, all eleven localities within the Region 9 footprint have been involved with approved 
projects by supporting financially, engaging in project development or writing Letters of Support.  

 

 

 

 













 

3 
 

8. To expedite receipt of payment, it is recommended that GRANTEE contact the 
Virginia Department of Accounts (DOA) to arrange for electronic transfer of GO 
VIRGINIA funds.  The forms to establish electronic payment with DOA are 
available at www.doa.virginia.gov.    
 

9. The project shall commence on the Project Start Date, and shall terminate no later 
than the Project End Date. Funds not expended by those dates may be subject to re-
appropriation, unless the GRANTEE has received explicit approval by WRITTEN 
NOTICE from DHCD to extend this AGREEMENT. Final requests for the funds 
must be made no later than 90 DAYS from the Project End Date outlined in the 
AGREEMENT. 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 

10. GRANTEE and SUBGRANTEE will commence, carry out and complete this scope 
of work, beginning on XXXXXX X, XXXX as described in the GRANTEE’s GO 
VIRGINIA Economic Resilience and Recovery Grant APPLICATION submitted 
to DHCD in CAMS, and any subsequent, approved, written amendments to the 
APPLICATION, which are made a part of this AGREEMENT. GRANTEE and 
SUBGRANTEE shall complete the scope of work as described in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, on or before XXXXXX X, XXXX.  

 
PROJECT TITLE:  XXXXXXXXXXXXXX    
 
ACTIVITIES: 
  

1. As provided in approved proposal. Add details here. 
2. As provided in approved proposal.  Add details here.  
3. As provided in approved proposal: Add details here. 
4. Additional activities as needed. Add details here. 

 
MILESTONES: 
 

ADD TARGET MILESTONE DATE FROM GRANT PROPOSAL: 
• Add milestone from grant proposal 
• Add milestone from grant proposal 
• Add milestone from grant proposal 

 
ADD TARGET MILESTONE DATE FROM GRANT PROPOSAL Add 
milestone from grant proposal 

• Add milestone from grant proposal 
 

ADD TARGET MILESTONE DATE FROM GRANT PROPOSAL Add 
milestone from grant proposal 

Add milestone from grant proposal 
 














	April 30 Financials Packet for June 19 Annual Meeting.pdf
	GO Virginia -- 04-30-2020 Balance Sheet
	GO Virginia -- 04-30-2020 P&L - Capacity Building
	GO Virginia -- 04-30-2020 P&L - Projects


	Name: 
	Organization: 
	Email: 
	Comments: 


